

Journal of the House

FORTY-NINTH DAY

HALL OF THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
TOPEKA, KS, Wednesday, March 21, 2018, 11:00 a.m.

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker Ryckman in the chair.

The roll was called with 121 members present.

Rep. Seiwert was excused on legislative business.

Reps. Claeys, Schwab and Williams were excused on excused absence by the Speaker.

Prayer by guest chaplain, The Reverend Rachael Pryor, Andover Lutheran Church, Windom, and guest of Rep. Johnson.

Holy One, Spirit of Truth:

Once, for a nation delivered from slavery to become your faithful people, you commanded according to Deuteronomy, Chapter 24: "Don't take advantage of poor or needy workers, whether they are fellow Israelites or strangers who live in your land or your cities. Pay them their wages the same day, before the sun sets, because they are poor, *and their very life depends upon that pay.*"

Look down, O Holy One, Source of wisdom and love: these civil servants bow their heads day in and day out over the details, the right wording, the precise figures. Those details *are* important. They make things happen. They need careful attention. Help these Representatives to know they do not labor in vain: this hard work *is* appreciated. But do not bow them too low with the burden of the fine print. Do not let the paperwork and the theoretical studies and the bottom line overtake their awareness that the very lives of real people depend upon each person in this room, every single day.

Help us not to be so mired in the little things, O God, that we lose sight of the biggest things: your love for all of creation, and your extravagant dream of a world where all may thrive. Amen.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Proehl.

INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS

There being no objection, the following remarks of Rep. Weigel are spread upon the Journal:

I want to ask you to join me today in congratulating Paramedic Mindy Toy, a 2017 winner of the American Ambulance Association Star of Life Award, for contributions of an ambulance professional who has gone above and beyond the call of duty.

Mindy was nominated by her peers for her service to the community and the EMS profession. Supervisory personnel made a final determination. Mindy and her family were flown to Washington, D.C. in June 2017 to receive the award. She was the only AMR Kansas employee to receive the award for her life-saving skills.

Mindy has been a paramedic since 2015 and is also a field training officer. She was also nominated for this award again for 2018 – but because she received it the previous year, was not eligible this year.

One last point – in her high school years she did some baby-sitting. Yes, she babysat my three kids, although no life-saving skills were needed.

Rep. Weigel presented Ms. Toy with a framed House certificate in honor of her accomplishments.

INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS

There being no objection, the following remarks of Rep. Elliott are spread upon the Journal:

Good morning:

I am pleased to recognize Maureen Botros of Wichita as a recipient of the 2018 Prudential Spirit of Community Award. This annual award recognizes the top two students in each state and the District of Columbia for outstanding acts of volunteerism. In its 23rd year, this program is conducted by Prudential Financial in partnership with the National Association of Secondary School Principals.

Joining her today are her parents, Dr. Mag and Maureen Botros and brother George. Reeny, as she likes to be called, is a Home School Senior and was nominated by the Girl Scouts of Kansas Heartland in Wichita. The Girl Scouts honored her with the National Young Woman of Distinction in 2017.

She has founded a series of week long technology camps promoting the idea that girls can succeed in STEM fields (Science, Technology, Engineering, and Math) without sacrificing their femininity. Her other accomplishments include designing a bio-responsive workout wear device called “Illumi-cize,” which measures heart-rate and displays the results via colored lights on accessories such as hair bows and necklaces. Reeny’s objective was to combat child obesity with Illumi-cize and the camps she hosted both in the U. S. and Mexico, allowed high school participants to design their own versions of these accessories.

She participated in the White House Science Fair in 2015 and was only one of eight exhibitors to present and discuss her Illumi-cize project with President Obama. Reeny has many other awards including Kansas Junior Academy of Science, where she earned first place in 2015. She presented her Illumi-cize project to the American Association for the Advancement of Science the same year. Reeny also found time to go on a medical mission trip to Haiti with her father. Please join me in congratulating Reeny as

a recipient of the 2018 Prudential Spirit of Community Award and her volunteer service, peer leadership and community spirit.

Rep. Elliott presented Reeny with a framed House certificate in honor of her impressive achievements.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bill was introduced and read by title:

HB 2788, AN ACT concerning income taxation; relating to rates; amending K.S.A. 2017 Supp. 79-32,110 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Taxation.

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

Announcing passage of **SB 313, SB 418**.

Announcing passage of **HB 2541, HB 2558, HB 2608, HB 2619, HB 2691**.

Announcing passage of **HB 2542**, as amended **HB 2628**, as amended **HB 2650**, as amended.

The Senate accedes to the request of the House for a conference on **HB 2042** and has appointed Senators Estes, Olson and Faust-Goudeau as conferees on the part of the Senate.

The Senate accedes to the request of the House for a conference on **HB 2145** and has appointed Senators Estes, Olson and Faust-Goudeau as conferees on the part of the Senate.

The Senate accedes to the request of the House for a conference on **Sub HB 2194** and has appointed Senators Petersen, Goddard and Pettey as conferees on the part of the Senate.

The Senate accedes to the request of the House for a conference on **HB 2454** and has appointed Senators Wilborn, Lynn and Haley as conferees on the part of the Senate.

The Senate accedes to the request of the House for a conference on **HB 2476** and has appointed Senators Estes, Olson and Faust-Goudeau as conferees on the part of the Senate.

INTRODUCTION OF SENATE BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following Senate bills were thereupon introduced and read by title:

SB 313, SB 418.

CONSENT CALENDAR

No objection was made to **SB 276** appearing on the Consent Calendar for the first day.

FINAL ACTION ON BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

Sub HB 2103, AN ACT concerning insurance; relating to the state employees health care commission; coverage for amino acid-based elemental formula, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 115; Nays 6; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 4.

Yeas: Alcalá, Alford, Arnberger, Aurand, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Becker, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Brim, Burroughs, Carlin, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, Clark,

Clayton, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Crum, S., Curtis, E. Davis, Deere, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Dove, Elliott, Ellis, Eplee, Finch, Finney, Francis, Frownfelter, Gallagher, Gartner, Good, Hawkins, Helgerson, Henderson, Hibbard, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Huebert, Humphries, Jennings, Johnson, Judd-Jenkins, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Koesten, Kuether, Landwehr, Lewis, Lusk, Lusker, Markley, Mason, Mastroni, Miller, Murnan, Neighbor, Ohaebosim, Orr, Osterman, Ousley, Parker, F. Patton, Phelps, Phillips, Pittman, Probst, Proehl, Rafie, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rooker, Ruiz, Ryckman, Sawyer, Schreiber, Schroeder, Sloan, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Sutton, S. Swanson, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thompson, Trimboli, Trimmer, Vickrey, Victors, Ward, Waymaster, Weber, C., Weigel, Wheeler, Whipple, Whitmer, Winn, Wolfe Moore.

Nays: Burris, Esau, Garber, Jacobs, K. Jones, R. Powell.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Claeys, Schwab, Seiwert, K. Williams.

The substitute bill passed.

HB 2625, AN ACT concerning the Kansas law enforcement training act; relating to the central registry; records contained in the registry; amending K.S.A. 2017 Supp. 74-5611a and repealing the existing section, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 98; Nays 23; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 4.

Yeas: Alford, Arnberger, Aurand, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Becker, Bergquist, Blex, Brim, Burris, Burroughs, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, Clark, Clayton, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Crum, S., E. Davis, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Dove, Elliott, Ellis, Eplee, Esau, Finch, Francis, Frownfelter, Gallagher, Garber, Gartner, Good, Hawkins, Hibbard, Highland, Hineman, Hoffman, Holscher, Houser, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, K. Jones, Judd-Jenkins, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Koesten, Landwehr, Lewis, Lusker, Markley, Mason, Mastroni, Murnan, Neighbor, Orr, Osterman, F. Patton, Phelps, Phillips, R. Powell, Proehl, Rafie, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rooker, Ryckman, Sawyer, Schreiber, Schroeder, Sloan, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Sutton, S. Swanson, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thompson, Trimboli, Trimmer, Vickrey, Waymaster, Weber, C., Weigel, Wheeler, Whipple, Whitmer, Wolfe Moore.

Nays: Alcalá, Bishop, Carlin, Curtis, Deere, Finney, Helgerson, Henderson, Highberger, Hodge, Horn, Kuether, Lusk, Miller, Ohaebosim, Ousley, Parker, Pittman, Probst, Ruiz, Victors, Ward, Winn.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Claeys, Schwab, Seiwert, K. Williams.

The bill passed, as amended.

SB 375, AN ACT regulating traffic; relating to length of vehicles, certain vehicle combinations; gross weight limits, emergency vehicles; amending K.S.A. 2017 Supp. 8-1904 and repealing the existing section, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 121; Nays 0; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 4.

Yeas: Alcalá, Alford, Arnberger, Aurand, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Becker, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Brim, Burris, Burroughs, Carlin, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, Clark, Clayton, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Crum, S., Curtis, E. Davis, Deere,

Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Dove, Elliott, Ellis, Eplee, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, Frownfelter, Gallagher, Garber, Gartner, Good, Hawkins, Helgerson, Henderson, Hibbard, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, K. Jones, Judd-Jenkins, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Koesten, Kuether, Landwehr, Lewis, Lusk, Lusker, Markley, Mason, Mastroni, Miller, Murnan, Neighbor, Ohaebosim, Orr, Osterman, Ousley, Parker, F. Patton, Phelps, Phillips, Pittman, R. Powell, Probst, Proehl, Rafie, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rooker, Ruiz, Ryckman, Sawyer, Schreiber, Schroeder, Sloan, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Sutton, S. Swanson, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thompson, Trimboli, Trimmer, Vickrey, Victors, Ward, Waymaster, Weber, C., Weigel, Wheeler, Whipple, Whitmer, Winn, Wolfe Moore.

Nays: None.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Claeys, Schwab, Seiwert, K. Williams.

The bill passed, as amended.

SB 398, AN ACT concerning the Kansas state board of cosmetology; relating to cosmetology; licensure; senior status license; requirements; amending K.S.A. 2017 Supp. 65-1904 and repealing the existing section, was considered on final action.

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 121; Nays 0; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 4.

Yeas: Alcalá, Alford, Arnberger, Aurand, Awerkamp, Baker, Ballard, Barker, Becker, Bergquist, Bishop, Blex, Brim, Burris, Burroughs, Carlin, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, Clark, Clayton, Concannon, Corbet, Cox, Crum, S., Curtis, E. Davis, Deere, Delperdang, Dierks, Dietrich, Dove, Elliott, Ellis, Eplee, Esau, Finch, Finney, Francis, Frownfelter, Gallagher, Garber, Gartner, Good, Hawkins, Helgerson, Henderson, Hibbard, Highberger, Highland, Hineman, Hodge, Hoffman, Holscher, Horn, Houser, Huebert, Humphries, Jacobs, Jennings, Johnson, K. Jones, Judd-Jenkins, Karleskint, Kelly, Kessinger, Koesten, Kuether, Landwehr, Lewis, Lusk, Lusker, Markley, Mason, Mastroni, Miller, Murnan, Neighbor, Ohaebosim, Orr, Osterman, Ousley, Parker, F. Patton, Phelps, Phillips, Pittman, R. Powell, Probst, Proehl, Rafie, Rahjes, Ralph, Resman, Rooker, Ruiz, Ryckman, Sawyer, Schreiber, Schroeder, Sloan, Smith, A., Smith, E., Stogsdill, Sutton, S. Swanson, Tarwater, Thimesch, Thompson, Trimboli, Trimmer, Vickrey, Victors, Ward, Waymaster, Weber, C., Weigel, Wheeler, Whipple, Whitmer, Winn, Wolfe Moore.

Nays: None.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Claeys, Schwab, Seiwert, K. Williams.

The bill passed.

On motion of Rep. Hineman, the House resolved into the Committee of the Whole, with Rep. Francis in the chair.

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

On motion of Rep. Francis, Committee of the Whole report, as follows, was adopted:

Recommended that on motion of Rep. Proehl, **SB 185** be amended, on page 1, in line 6, before "Section", by inserting "New";

On page 3, following line 6, by inserting:

"Sec. 2. K.S.A. 19-4904 is hereby amended to read as follows: 19-4904. (a) The board of county commissioners of Johnson county and the board of county commissioners of Labette county may create by resolution a redevelopment authority; ~~which shall be composed and have such powers as the board may authorize and determine by resolution~~ consistent with the provisions of this act.

(b) Any redevelopment authority ~~created pursuant to subsection (a) of this section~~ shall be composed of seven members appointed by the board of county commissioners, with at least three of the members being representatives of cities, townships or other local governmental entities located adjacent to the federal enclave property. Each member appointed to the redevelopment authority shall be a resident of the county and shall serve for a term ~~consistent with the term of office for the board member making the appointment and until such member's successor is appointed and qualifies established by the board of county commissioners~~. In case of a vacancy in office, a member shall be appointed by the board in the same manner to fill the unexpired term.

Any member of the redevelopment authority may be removed by the board of county commissioners for the same cause justifying removal of any appointive officer.

Members of the redevelopment authority shall receive no compensation for their services but may be reimbursed for necessary expenses incurred in the performance of their duties.

(c) Upon creation, the redevelopment authority shall be a body corporate and politic, as quasi-municipal organization under the laws of this state, with the powers conferred by this act or by resolution of the board of county commissioners. In performing the duties authorized under this act, the redevelopment authority shall have the power:

- (1) To sue and be sued;
- (2) to receive ~~for its lawful activities~~ any contributions or moneys appropriated by the state, any city, county or other political subdivision or agency, or by the federal government or any agency or officer thereof from any other source;
- (3) to disburse funds ~~for its lawful activities~~;
- (4) to enter into contracts;
- (5) to acquire by donation, purchase or lease land that is located within a federal enclave or land located within a redevelopment district established under this act;
- (6) to sell and convey real estate acquired under this act; and
- (7) to do and perform all other things provided by this act, ~~or amendments thereto~~, or by resolution of the board of county commissioners and to have the powers conferred by this act or board resolution.

Powers conferred on the redevelopment authority may be exercised only with the approval of the board of county commissioners and all expenditures made by the redevelopment authority shall be within available resources.

(d) The redevelopment authority shall, at a minimum, perform the following duties:

- (1) Conduct meetings with representatives and officials of cities, counties, planning associations or commissions or similar entities or organizations to develop information and ensure that the full range of interests related to the redevelopment is considered;
- (2) review any comprehensive plan adopted for the property and develop recommendations for changes, if needed;
- (3) evaluate surrounding property uses, zoning regulations, and other land use

factors and development recommendations to ensure compatibility;

(4) evaluate the development potential and market feasibility for proposals and options for redevelopment of the property;

(5) evaluate potential methods for the transfer, ownership and development of the property;

(6) make recommendations to the board on proposals for the acquisition and financing of the property by the county;

(7) conduct such other studies as the board may request or direct; and

(8) present ~~such~~ studies, reports, recommendations and other information to the board.

(e) Upon the establishment of a redevelopment district pursuant to K.S.A. 19-4902 or 19-4903, and amendments thereto, the redevelopment authority shall perform the following additional duties as prescribed by the board:

(1) Solicit and receive development proposals for all or parts of property;

(2) evaluate development proposals received for all parts of the property and present the evaluation and recommendation to the board or to a zoning board as directed by the board;

(3) coordinate with county officials or staff in negotiations with developers;

(4) prepare recommendations to the board concerning financing or redevelopment or infrastructure for the property;

(5) prepare recommendations for updates to the comprehensive master plan; and

(6) perform ~~such~~ other studies and coordination as the board may request or direct.

(f) In the event that the board of county commissioners determines that it is in the best interest of the county to acquire all or part of the enclave property for redevelopment purposes, then the redevelopment authority shall perform the following additional duties as prescribed by the board:

(1) Act as the primary contact for developers who are interested in acquiring and developing land at the property;

(2) prepare and present marketing strategy for the property; and

(3) provide ~~such~~ other duties as the board may request or direct.

~~(e)(g)~~ If created, the redevelopment authority may, upon approval of the board of county commissioners, acquire by negotiated sale, all or any part of the property located within a federal enclave in county, and in so doing, may enter into contracts for the payment of costs for ~~such the~~ property, may incur debt and obligation secured by the property, and may sell the property to pay such obligations. ~~The redevelopment authority may not incur any other debt, nor pledge any other resources.~~

The board of county commissioners shall approve such acquisition if the following conditions are satisfied:

(1) The property is was part of the sunflower army ammunition plant in Johnson county or the property was a part of the Kansas army ammunition plant located in Labette county;

(2) the property is transferred by deed without restrictions due to environmental contamination and with a covenant of transfer in compliance with the provisions of 42 U.S.C. § 9620 et seq., and amendments thereto, or the governor has executed a finding of suitability for early transfer in compliance with federal laws and regulations;

(3) neither the state of Kansas through its subdivisions or agencies nor Johnson county or Labette county has declared an intent to acquire the property for

redevelopment purposes;

(4) the acquisition will not require the redevelopment authority to finance the acquisition with resources other than that which is secured by the property itself;

(5) the acquisition is made upon terms that expressly exclude any obligation of Johnson county or Labette county or the state for the payment of any funds for the acquisition; and

(6) the redevelopment authority has presented a feasibility study demonstrating that the costs of acquisition, including all required obligations for environmental remediation, can be paid and satisfied as and when due through the subdivision, selling and redevelopment of the property.

Upon acquisition of all or any part of the property, the redevelopment authority shall immediately request establishment of a redevelopment district under K.S.A. 19-4902 or 19-4903, and amendments thereto, and all redevelopment of the property shall be in conformance with the comprehensive master plan and zoning and subdivision regulations adopted by the board of county commissioners.

~~(f)~~(h) If, at any time after creating a redevelopment authority pursuant to this section, the board of county commissioners determines that the redevelopment authority is no longer needed or should otherwise be dissolved, then the board of county commissioners may, by resolution, dissolve and abolish the redevelopment authority. Thereafter, the board of county commissioners, for and on behalf of the county, shall assume and perform any on-going duties or powers of the authority, shall assume title to and possession of all property, real or personal, owned or held by the authority, and shall assume all debts, contracts and obligations lawfully incurred or entered into by the authority. The board of county commissioners may, by subsequent resolution, reestablish a redevelopment authority under this section at any later time.

(i) (1) The redevelopment authority may, by resolution duly adopted by the majority of the members of the redevelopment authority:

(A) Incur debt and issue bonds in the name of the redevelopment authority to pay the costs of developing and improving properties within the redevelopment district, specifically including, but not limited to, the construction, operation and maintenance of water lines and treatment facilities, sewer and wastewater lines and treatment facilities, electrical lines and distribution facilities, gas lines and storage and transmission facilities, roads and bridges, railway improvements, the demolition of existing obsolete or otherwise unusable structures and the disposal of construction and demolition waste on-site and otherwise, and the construction of buildings and other capital improvements within the redevelopment district;

(B) secure the indebtedness by lien upon, security interest in or mortgage of any property owned by the redevelopment authority; and

(C) acquire and finance the property and improvements through lease-purchase agreements pursuant to K.S.A. 10-1116b et seq., and amendments thereto.

(2) The principal and interest on any bonds or other indebtedness issued under the provisions of this act shall be payable solely from any lawful source of revenue of the redevelopment authority.

(3) The maximum maturity of any bonds issued pursuant to this act shall not exceed 20 years.

(4) Any debt incurred under the provisions of this act shall not be deemed to constitute a debt of the state or of any political subdivision thereof or a pledge of the

faith and credit of the state or of any such political subdivision thereof. All such debt shall contain on the face thereof a statement to the effect that neither the state nor any political subdivision thereof shall be obligated to pay the same or the interest thereon except from revenues of the project or projects for which they are issued or from funds provided therefor and that neither the faith and credit nor the taxing power of the state or any political subdivision thereof is pledged to the payment of the principal of or the interest on such debt.

(5) All expenses incurred in carrying out the provisions of this act shall be payable solely from funds provided under the authority of this act and no liability or obligation shall be incurred by the authority beyond the extent to which moneys shall have been provided under the provisions of this act.

Sec. 3. K.S.A. 19-4904 is hereby repealed.";

And by renumbering sections accordingly;

On page 1, in the title, in line 2, by striking the semicolon and inserting a comma; in line 3, after "utilities" by inserting "; redevelopment authorities in certain counties, powers of authority; amending K.S.A. 19-4904 and repealing the existing section" and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee report to **SB 324** be adopted; and the bill be passed as amended.

On motion of Rep. Hodge to amend **SB 351**, Rep. Hawkins requested a ruling on the amendment being germane to the bill. The Rules Chair ruled the amendment was germane.

The motion of Rep. Hodge to amend **SB 351**, did not prevail.

Also, on motion of Rep. Whipple to amend **SB 351**, Rep. Hawkins requested a ruling on the amendment being germane to the bill. The Rules Chair ruled the amendment not germane; and the bill be passed.

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

Committee on **Agriculture** recommends **SB 263**, as amended by Senate Committee of the Whole, be amended on page 2, in line 15, after "hemp" by inserting ", in accordance with 7 U.S.C. § 5940"; in line 33, after "county" by inserting ", and other counties as determined by the department,"; in line 34, by striking "and market" and inserting a comma; also in line 34, after "research" by inserting ", cultivation, market analysis, manufacturing and transportation"; in line 36, after "(b)" by inserting "In the event that the department acts alone to cultivate industrial hemp grown from certified seed and to promote the research and development of industrial hemp, the secretary shall establish an advisory board within the department to review and recommend applications for pilot projects and research proposals to the secretary. The secretary shall not approve any such project or proposal without the recommendation of the advisory board.

(c) ";

Also on page 2, in line 38, by striking the first "or" and inserting a comma; also in line 38, after "transportation" by inserting ", processing or distribution"; in line 39, after the period by inserting "The department shall establish fees for licenses, license renewals and other necessary expenses to defray the cost of implementing and operating the alternative crop research act in this state on an ongoing basis."; in line 40, by striking "(c)" and inserting "(d)";

On page 3, in line 32, by striking the first "or" and inserting a comma; also in line 32, after "transportation" by inserting ", processing or distribution"; in line 39, after "resources" by inserting "and the house standing committee on agriculture"; also in line 39, after the period by inserting "The department shall send such committees an annual supplemental report on the continued progress of such process at the beginning of each regular legislative session for the following three years.";

And by redesignating subsections, paragraphs, subparagraphs and clauses accordingly;

Also on page 3, following line 41, by inserting:

"(h) The legislature shall review the provisions of this act prior to July 1, 2022.

New Sec. 3. (a) There is hereby created in the state treasury the alternative crop research act licensing fee fund to be administered by the secretary of agriculture. All expenditures from the alternative crop research act licensing fee fund shall be made in accordance with appropriation acts upon warrants of the director of accounts and reports issued pursuant to vouchers signed by the secretary of agriculture or the secretary's designee.

(b) Licensing and renewal fees shall be established pursuant to rules and regulations adopted by the secretary under the alternative crop research act. The amounts received for such fees shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the alternative crop research act licensing fee fund.";

On page 7, in line 25, after "thereto" by inserting ", when cultivated, possessed or used for activities authorized by the alternative crop research act";

On page 12, in line 24, after "thereto" by inserting ", when cultivated, possessed or used for activities authorized by the alternative crop research act";

On page 21, in line 4, by striking all after "(h)"; in line 5, by striking "thereto,"; in line 21, by striking the period; also in line 21, after the parentheses by inserting ", except tetrahydrocannabinols obtained from industrial hemp as defined in section 1, and amendments thereto, when cultivated, possessed or used for activities authorized by the alternative crop research act.";

On page 23, in line 40, by striking "statute book" and inserting "Kansas register";

And by renumbering sections accordingly; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on **Appropriations** recommends **HB 2688** be amended on page 1, following line 33, by inserting:

"(10) one member representing a federally qualified health center appointed by the Kansas association for the medically underserved;"

And by redesignating subsections, paragraphs, subparagraphs and clauses accordingly; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on **Energy, Utilities and Telecommunications** recommends **SB 279**, as amended by Senate Committee, be passed.

Committee on **Financial Institutions and Pensions** recommends **HB 2594**, be amended by adoption of the amendments recommended by the House Committee on Financial Institutions and Pensions as reported in the Journal of the House on February 14, 2018, and the bill, as printed with the amendments by the House Committee, be passed as amended.

Committee on **Judiciary** recommends **SB 180**, as amended by Senate Committee, be amended on page 4, in line 43, by striking "statute book" and inserting "Kansas register"; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on **Local Government** recommends **HB 2629** be amended on page 1, by striking all in lines 6 through 24; in line 34, by striking "\$500" and inserting "\$50";

On page 2, in line 3, by striking "as provided in section 1, and amendments thereto"; following line 11, by inserting:

"New Sec. 2. (a) In addition to the provisions of K.S.A. 2017 Supp. 58-4621, and amendments thereto, any member of the board of directors or any property manager who knowingly violates any of the provisions of the Kansas uniform common interest owners bill of rights act shall be liable for the payment of a civil penalty in an action brought by the attorney general, in a sum set by the court not to exceed \$500 for each violation. The court shall have jurisdiction to issue injunctions or writs of mandamus to enforce the provisions of the act.

(b) Civil penalties sued for and recovered by the attorney general shall be paid into the attorney general's common interest community fund.";

And by renumbering sections accordingly;

On page 1, in the title, in line 1, by striking "consumer protection and"; in line 2, after the semicolon by inserting "relating to enforcement powers of the attorney general"; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on **Transportation** recommends **Substitute for SB 272** be amended on page 1, following line 30, by inserting:

"(e) This section shall be part of and supplemental to the uniform act regulating traffic on highways."; and the bill be passed as amended.

Upon unanimous consent, the House referred back to the regular business, Introduction of Bills and Concurrent Resolutions.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bill was introduced and read by title:

HB 2789, AN ACT concerning school districts; creating the Kansas staff as first emergency responders (SAFER) act; exempting certain records from the open records act; closed or executive meetings of boards of education for certain purposes; amending K.S.A. 2017 Supp. 45-221, 72-6143, 75-7c03, 75-7c04, 75-7c05, 75-7c08, 75-7c10 and 75-4319 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Federal and State Affairs.

REPORT ON ENGROSSED BILLS

Sub HB 2103, HB 2625 reported correctly engrossed March 20, 2018.

On motion of Rep. Hineman, the House adjourned until 11:00 a.m., Thursday, March 22, 2018.

JENNY HAUGH, JULIA WERNER, *Journal Clerks.*

SUSAN W. KANNARR, *Chief Clerk.*

